
WINSTON & STRAWN LLP

35 WEST WACKER DRIVE
CHICAGO. ILLINOIS 60601-9703

43 RUE DU RHONE
1204 GENEVA. SWITZERLAND

BUCKLERSBURY HOUSE
3 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

LONDON EC4N 8NH

wbi/y.ell(«. winston.com
(202) 282-5855

1700 K STREET, N.W.
WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006-3817

(202) 282-5000

FACSIMILE (202) 282-5100

www.winston.com

333 SOUTH GRAND AVENUE
LOS ANGELES. CALIFORNIA 90071-1543

o -*•
AR1£VVE

10166-4193
--o^em

21 >MENJL[E:VlCTqR HUGO
1818. FRANCE

1 o£c>|SpE*$iA "STREET
SANTPRANGJSCO; CALJfjORNIA 94111 -5894

en

December 28, 2005

BY HAND

Ms. Rhonda J. Vosdingh, Esq.
Associate General Counsel
Federal Election Commission
Office of General Counsel, Enforcement Division
999 E Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20463

Re: Sua Sponte Complaint: Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
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Dear Ms. Vosdingh:

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(l) and 11 C.F.R. § 111.4, 1 am writing to initiate a sua
sponte submission on behalf of my client, Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Morton Grove")
and its President, Chief Executive Officer, and Chairman of the Board, Mr. Brian A. Tambi.
Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals is a relatively small manufacturer of low cost Pharmaceuticals
located in Morton Grove, Illinois.

This letter serves to notify the Federal Election Commission ("Commission") of potential
unknowing violations of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, ("Act") by
Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi. Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi are committed to conducting all of
Morton Grove's business, including any political activity by the company, its officers, or employees
in a lawful and ethical manner. In that spirit, Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi are ready and willing to
cooperate fully with the Commission and its staff in this matter by making all relevant documents
available to the Commission and by making its officers and employees available for interviews
and/or depositions that may be requested by the Commission's Office of General Counsel.

Consequently, on behalf of Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi, we request (1) that the Office of
General Counsel initiate an enforcement proceeding; (2) that the Commission find reason to believe
that Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) and 2 U.S.C. § 441f but that such
violations by Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi were not knowing and willful; (3) that the Office of
General Counsel obtain the Commission's authorization to engage in a pre-probable cause
conciliation with Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi pursuant to 11 C.F.R. § 111.18(d); and (4) pursuant
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to such authorization that the Office of General Counsel engage in pre-probable cause conciliation
negotiations with respect to the matters described herein.

I. Factual Background

Morton Grove is a small, privately-held company headquartered in Morton Grove, Illinois,
and is organized under the laws of the state of Illinois. Morton Grove is a specialty pharmaceutical
company that develops, manufactures, and markets prescription oral liquid and topical liquid
Pharmaceuticals. In total, Morton Grove has a work force of approximately 300 employees. Mr.
Tambi is the President of Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals. It has no lobbying group, has not and
does not participate in political processes, and has not requested any intervention by any of the
recipients to whom political contributions have been made. Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals does
not have a public affairs function, public relations or legal departments.

On different occasions in 2001, 2002, 2004, and 2005, Mr. Tambi made political
contributions to two candidates for federal office and a political party on behalf of Morton Grove
Pharmaceuticals. Thereafter, on being advised by his CFO, he submitted a routine request for
reimbursement to the company. Because Mr. Tambi made these contributions on behalf of the
company and neither Mr. Tambi nor the company's CFO knew of any legal prohibition, he was
reimbursed for these matters as a business expense. Neither Morton Grove nor Mr. Tambi were in
any way aware that corporate reimbursements of such contributions were unlawful. Prior to the
first contributions in 2001, the privately-held company has not participated in the political process
and has never organized a separate segregated fund. Moreover, Mr. Tambi himself was not familiar
with campaign finance requirements. The two candidates for federal office were formally
introduced to Mr. Tambi by the Generic Pharmaceutical Association ("GPhA") as friends and
advocates of the Generic Pharmaceutical Industry. As noted above, Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals
has no lobbying group, has not and does not participate in political processes, and has never
requested any intervention by any of the recipients to whom these contributions were made.
Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals does not have a public affairs function, public relations or legal
departments. A search of the Commission's on-line records does not reveal any previous Federal
contributions by Mr. Tambi prior to 2001 when these contributions began. Indeed, the
reimbursement requests submitted to Morton Grove by Mr. Tambi clearly indicated that the purpose
of each reimbursement was for political contributions. See Exhibit 1, Tambi Affidavit.
Additionally, attached as Exhibit 2 are copies of the available reimbursement requests submitted by
Mr. Tambi.

Based on Morton Grove's research to date, a total of $28,000 in corporate funds was used
over a period of four years to make contributions, to at least two candidates for Federal office and
one political party committee.1 None of the political candidates or committee was aware (nor is

1 However, four of these corporate contributions, although reimbursed in violation of the Act, were made prior to the
effective date of the Bipartisan Campaign Reform Act's ban on corporate contributions to national political parties.
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there any evidence that they were aware) that Morton Grove reimbursed Mr. Tambi for his
contributions or that the payers on the contribution checks were conduits. Exhibit 3 provides a
chart detailing each of these contributions, and noting the date the contribution was made, the
recipient of the contribution, the amount of the contribution, and the amount of the reimbursement
by Morton Grove.

:.•. In late spring 2005, one of Morton Grove's board members raised a question concerning
:: these political contributions. Upon learning of the questions concerning these contributions, Mr.
['j Tambi consulted legal counsel at Winston & Strawn LLP, which gave rise to this sua sponte
';•' submission. Upon discovering that corporate reimbursements for Federal political contributions
..« were unlawful, Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi took immediate steps to remedy the violation and
'- JT establish procedures to ensure future compliance.

';•;' On May 7, 2005, Mr. Tambi promptly reimbursed Morton Grove for these prohibited
,' 't contributions. Attached as Exhibit 4 is a copy of the personal checks written by Mr. Tambi to

reimburse Morton Grove for these contributions. Additionally, Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi
engaged my services to investigate the matter and provide campaign finance counsel. With the
assistance of counsel, Morton Grove began an internal review to collect all related documentation
and identify the Federal candidates and political parties that received contributions from Mr. Tambi
on behalf of the Company.

Morton Grove also drafted a company policy on political contributions that makes clear that
employees may not be reimbursed for any political contribution. Attached as Exhibit 5 is a copy of
the new company policy regarding political contributions by Morton Grove employees.
Furthermore, Morton Grove has instituted corporate controls to make sure similar prohibited
reimbursements do not occur in the future.

Concurrent with this sua sponte submission, Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi have notified
each political committee and political party committee that received contributions from Mr. Tambi.
Morton Grove is prepared to waive its right to a refund of all political contributions from the
recipient committees and has requested that each recipient disgorge all illegal contributions
referenced in this sua sponte submission to the U.S. Treasury.

Finally, Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi determined to bring this matter to the attention of the
Commission and fully cooperate with the Commission and its staff in reaching a resolution.

II. Legal Analysis

The Act prohibits corporations from making contributions to Federal candidates or political
committees and prohibits a corporation's officers from consenting to any such contribution by a
corporation. See 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) (2005). Additionally, the Act bars persons from making a
contribution in the name of another. See 2 U.S.C. § 441f (2005). The Act defines the term
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"person" to include a corporation. See 2 U.S.C. § 431(11) (2005). Thus, in this specific case, the
prohibition applies to a corporation's reimbursement to an individual for his contribution to a
Federal candidate or political committee. See F.E.C. Adv. Op. 41 (1986). It is apparent that, by
reimbursing Mr. Tambi, Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi have unintentionally violated the Act's
prohibition on corporate contributions and the Act's prohibition on making contributions in the
name of another.

Although the Act requires increased penalties for "knowing and willful" violations, it does
not define what constitutes such a violation. See 2 U.S.C. §§ 437g(a)(5)(C), (6)(C), and 437g(d)
(2005). Consequently, consideration of the legislative history of the Act is essential to further
understand the intended scope of the term "knowing and willful." During the House debate on
amendments to the Act, Congressman Wayne Hays, then Chairman of the U.S. House of
Representatives ("House") Committee on House Administration (the House committee with

';;' jurisdiction over Federal campaign finance law) and a sponsor of the 1976 amendments to the Act,
•\-f noted that the phrase "knowing and willful" referred "to actions taken with full knowledge of all of

the facts and a recognition that the action is prohibited by law." 122 Cong. Rec. H3778 (daily ed.
May 3, 1976) (statement of Rep. Hays). Thus, a knowing and willful violation requires knowledge
that one is violating the law. See Federal Election Comm 'n v. John A. Dramesifor Congress, 640
F. Supp. 985, 987 (D. N.J. 1986). Where there is no evidence of any "knowing, conscious, and
deliberate flaunting" of the Act, there can be no finding of "knowing and willful" conduct.
American Fed. of Labor & Congress of Indus. Org. v. Federal Election Comm'«, 628 F.2d 97, 101
(D.C. Cir. 1980)(citing Frank Irey, Jr., Inc. v. Occupational Safety and Health Review Comm'n,
519F.2d 1200, 1207 (1975)); see also Ratzlafv. United States, 510 U.S. 135, 141 (1994).

On the advice of counsel, Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi now understand that their actions
violate both 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) and 2 U.S.C. § 441 f. At the same time, it is obvious that Morton
Grove and Mr. Tambi were entirely unaware that the reimbursement of these contributions would
violate the provisions of the Act. As is evidenced by the foregoing facts, at the time the
contributions were made neither the (Exhibit 4) CFO, the corporation nor Mr. Tambi were
consciously and deliberately flaunting the Act. Consequently, the Commission should not find that
their violations were knowing and willful. Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi have acted firmly and
decisively to investigate the activity, institute appropriate remedial action, develop enhancements to
existing policies and procedures, and report the activity to the Commission, all of which indicate
their violations of the Act were not intentional.

III. Conclusion

Because Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi now recognize that the events described above
violate the Act, we submit to the Commission that it should find reason to believe that Morton
Grove and Mr. Tambi violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) and 2 U.S.C. § 441f to the extent described
herein but that the violations were not knowing and willful. On behalf of Morton Grove and Mr.
Tambi, we request that the Commission's Office of General Counsel initiate an enforcement
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proceeding and engage in pre-probable cause conciliation with respect to the potential violations
described above. In determining any applicable civil penalty related to these unintentional
violations, we further request that the Commission take into account the sua sponte nature of this
complaint, the remedial steps taken to date by Morton Grove and Mr. Tambi, as well as their
pledge of cooperation in this matter.

;., Thank you in advance for your assistance in this matter. Please feel free to contact me at
-: (202) 282-5855 should you have any questions.

jj' Sincerely,
> . *
TIT

*r _ —
O Wesley D. Bizzen,Tisq.
::; Counsel to Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals
"! and Brian Tambi

Enclosures

DC:427515.4



EXHIBIT 1

AFFIDAVIT OF BRIAN A. TAMBI

Brian A. Tambi, being duly sworn, hereby deposes and says:

1. I am President, Chief Executive Officer, and Chairman of the Board of Morton
Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

2. In the last 5 years, I made the following contributions to National Republican
Congressional Campaign Committee ("NRCC"): $500 (January 2001); $500
(January 2001); $500 (February 2001); $1,000 (October 2002); $5,000 (April
2004); $10,000 (September 2004); and $7,500 (October 2004).

3. In the last 5 years, I made the following contributions to Pallone for Congress:
$1,000 (September 2004) and $1,000 (March 2005).

4. In the last 5 years, I made the following contribution to Friends of Schumer:
$1,000 (November 2001).

5. I do not recall making a Federal political contribution before the 2001
contribution to the NRCC listed above.

6. After each contribution, I submitted the cost of the contribution for
reimbursement as a business expense.

7. I was unaware that corporate reimbursements of Federal political contributions
were prohibited by Federal law and that corporations could not make direct
contributions to Federal candidates.

8. Upon learning that the reimbursement violated Federal campaign finance law, I
paid back Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc., in the amount of $28,000 for all
of these federal contributions - including those pre-dating the Reform Act. I also
authorized a revision of the company's expense and related policies to prevent
similar mistakes in the future.

Brian A. Tambi

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN before me
This/6^dayof A ec£ »«***•

Notary Public

My Commission expires: ) \ 1^/0

2005.
*******§ "OFFICIAL SEAL" f

< ! MARIA E.DELGADO |
; NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF ILLINOIS,

DC:428588.1
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EXHIBIT 3
Reimbursed Contributions by Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Rec ip i en t Date of A m o u n t of A m o u n t of R e i m b u r s e m e n t
(Out r ib u t ion C o n t r i b u t i o n

NRCC°
NRCC°
NRCC°
Friends of Schumer*
NRCC°*
NRCC
NRCC*
Pallone for Congress*
NRCC*
Pallone for Congress

TOTAL

January 10,2001
February 7, 2001
February 20, 2001
November 15,2001
October 14, 2002
March 14, 2004
September 11,2004
September 12, 2004
October 28, 2004
March 23, 2005

$500
$500
$500

$1,000
$1,000
$5,000
$10,000
$1,000
$7,500
$1,000

$28,000

$500
$500
$500

$1,000
$1,000
$5,000
$10,000
$1,000
$7,500
$1000

$28,000

0 These corporate contributions, although reimbursed in violation of the Act, were made prior to the effective date of the
Bipartisan Campaign Reform Act's ban on corporate contributions to national political parties.

These contributions are reflected on the Expense Statements, which are attached as Exhibit 2.
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EXHIBIT 5

Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Policy on Political Activities

Morton Grove believes strongly in the democratic process, and the company encourages
participation in the political process by its officers and employees on their own time and at their
own expense. The company is legally prohibited from contributing directly or indirectly in
support of political candidates for Federal elective office and is similarly prohibited from making
such contributions in certain states. Thus, while officers and employees may spend their own
time and funds supporting political candidates and issues, Morton Grove shall not reimburse
such officers and employees in any way for their time or for their financial contributions to

cj political candidates or parties. Furthermore, company assets, facilities, and resources may not
en. be used for political purposes by Morton Grove or in the name of Morton Grove, except in
*n accordance with applicable laws and regulations and after approval by the Board of Directors.
0
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